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1 SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

2 FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

3 DONALD R. SHORT, Jm~ES F. Certified CoPV 
4 GLE.z\SON, CASEY MEEHAN, ) 

MARILYN SHORT, PATTY ) 

6 WESTERVELT, and DOTTIE YELLE, ) 

7 individually, and on behalf of) 

8 all other similarly situated, ) 

9 Plaintiffs, ) 

vs. ) No. GIC877707 

CC-LA JOLLA, INC., a Delaware ) VOLUME I 

11 Corporation, CC-LA JOLLA, ) 

12 L.L.C., a Delaware limited ) 

13 liability company, ) 

14 CC-DEVELOPMENT GROUP, INC., ) 

CLASSIC RESIDENCE MANAGEMENT ) 

16 LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, an ) 

17 Illinois Limited Partnership, ) 

18 and DOES 1 to 110, inclusive, ) 

19 Defendants. 

Videotaped Deposition of MARY KATHERINE 

21 MEEHAN, taken at 12531 High Bluff Drive, 

22 Suite 100, San Diego, California, commencing 

23 at 9:03 a.m., Wednesday, September 25, 2007, 

24 before Shuri Gray, CSR No. 3786. 
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1 Q. Approximately when did you receive this 09:23 

2 document?
 

3 A. I'd have to say that I can "t remember the exact
 

4 date. It was prior to moving In. It was probably lD
 

, .,
1996 or , .
 

6 Q. And again that was l.~'hen the previouc;. oltmers,
 

7 not my clients, were the owners of the property; is that
 

8 right?
 

9 A. Yes. Thatrs the first time I saw it, bllt I
 

have seen it many times since. 09:23 

11 Q. When have you seen it since? 

12 F.. In all the literatllre that I have ever received 

13 fL'om them, fe-lasTs, it al\~'ays showed this picture. 
S a 

14 Postcards, which I ser.t to people, this is where I am 

going to live. 09:23 

16 Q. Alld that was after you moved into the towers? 

17 .~ . Yes . I 11ave seen it before and after. 

18 Q. So when was the last time that vall saw this 

19 picture in brochures and things of that nature? 

MR. CONGER: If you recall. 09:23 

21 THE WITNESS: Well, if I can recall, I mean, 

22 they have been in my possession ever sillce we moved in. 

23 I donlt look at them every day, but I have had ttlem In 

24 tTl'}' possessiofl the 1,l\ihole entire time. 

23 
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1 BY MS. LANE:	 09:24 

2 Q. And it's your testimony today that Classic
 

3 Residence by Hyatt used this picture of these towers?
 

4 A. Yes.
 

Q. And have you given those documents to your 09:24 

6 attorney to give to us? 

7 A. Yes, I have. 

8 Q. Okay. And you were not a resident when the 

9 property was acquired in April of '98; is that correct? 

F•• No, I was not a resident in April of 198. 09:24 

11 Q. Why did you decide to move to La Jolla Village 

12 Towers? 

13 A. Well, the first reason is because it was 

14 looked like a very beauti.ful place to spemi the 

remain,jer of my life. I was very impressed with the 09:24 

16 advantages to living there, having had my mother in a 

17 separate assisted living facility at the time. It was 

18 beautiful. They promised to take care of me my entire 

19 life. Due to the sale of my home I was able to afford 

to move in. I thought this is beautiful. I loved its 09: 25 

21 location, and I loved all the amenities that they 

22 promised us, showed us pictures of, and decided to take 

:3 advantage of using my money for as long as possible 

2~ instead of waiting until I was quite a bit older. 

Q.	 One of the first thiJlgs you said is you rrloved 09:25 
24 
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1 tJlere tlecaLlse of the advantages to living there? 09:25 

2 A. Uh-huh. 

3 Q. What are those? 

4 A. Well, having been a homeowner for many, man~r 

5 years, I enjoyed having somebody else take care of 09:26 

6 landscaping, plumbing problems and providing me with a 

7 swimming pool, a dining facility, the community life, 

8 the other amenities of living in a community. I liked 

9 its location. And I liked the fact that they had or 

10 were going to have a health care septer that Itwuld take 09:26 

11 care of me in my very declinina years.a 

12 Q. And did you shop around at any other properties 

13 before moving before deciding on La ,Jolla Village? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. Where else did you look at? 09:26 

16 A. I looked at Pacific Regent, which is not a ceRe 

17 I realized after I locked at it. I looked at the Hyatt 

18 in Carmel or Monterey, since my parents used to live 

·19 ttv~re . Not in the retirement community, but they lived 

20 in the city of Carmel. I looked at La Vida Del Mar. I 09:26 

21 looked at Carlsbad by the Sea. And as I said, I had my 

22 mother in an assisted living facility, of which she was 

23 a renter. The idea (."'f paying an entrance fee and having 

24 these facilities and all the advantages of living there 

provided me, it was very enticing. 09: 27 
25 
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1 Q. So I'd like to go through those. Let's start 09:27 

2 with Pacific Regent. Why did you decide not -­ why did 

3 you decide against Pacific Regent? 

A. Well, first of all, it was not a cantinuiIlg 

care retirement community. It was a different financial 09:27 

6 setup. You bought it. You received a deed for your 

7 apartment and so on. And I felt that the facility did 

8 not have all of the advantages and amenities that 

9 La Jolla Village Tow~rs was going to have or Ilad 

already. 09:28 

11 Q. What sort of amenities was it missing? 

12 1L Well, I never saw a swimming pool at Pacific 

13 Regent. I had a neighbor whose parents lived there. We 

14 visited their apartment. I thought the ,apartments were 

small. They had only an elevator for the residents, two 09:23 

16 elevators side bj' side, which were very small, and I 

17 anticipated that with a building of tl~at size and people 

18 having to lIse assistive devices like walkers and 

19 wheelchairs, that it would be very difficult to move 

around the building. It was just a different feel too. 09:28 

21 '~. Can you describe the feel that how it was 

22 different from La Jolla Village? 

23 A. h'ell, the first thing jiOU w'alk in the concierge 

24 was very snotty and not very receptive to showing us the 

building or even any of th~ facilities. The general 09: 29 
~6 
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1 population that was seen in the lobby and when we did 09:29 

2 visit this one couple, they I felt they were a great
 

3 deal older than the group that I felt I would probably
 

4 see and had seen at La Jolla Village Towers. It was a
 

very active community at La Jolla Village Towers. 09:29 

6 Friendly. 

7 Q. With the Hyatt in MOTlterey, why did )'OU decide 

8 against that Hyatt? 

9 A. I love San Diego. I didn't want to live there. 

And it was a rental. In fact, I think it used to be a 09:29 

11 hotel. 1 1 m not sure of that, but anyway. 

12 Q. And La Vida Del Mar, why did you decide not to 

13 move there? 

14 A. They did not seem to have as much independent 

living people. They had more assisted living type of 09:30 

16 facility, and it was also a rental. And I thought it 

17 just -- I didn't really like where it w'as located 

18 either. 

19 Q. And Carlsbad by the Sea? 

.~ . Well, having livinq orl and off since 1969 alld 09:30 

21 1996 in Ulliversity City, I knew the advantages of living 

22 in the Golden Triangle as opposed to Carlsbad, and I 

23 felt that it wOllld be a lovely place t[~ live, but that 

24 the disadvantage of having to travel on Interstate 5 to 

get to an airport and so Oll and so ferth, it did !10t 09:30 
27 
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1 appeal to me in that respect. It did not have the 09:30 

2 advantage of its location, location, location. 

3 Q. When did vau begin talking to marketing folks 

4 ~t La Jolla Towers? 

c, A. As best as I can recall, it was sometime in '96 09:31 

6 or '7 we went to the trailer after we had seell the 

7 building being dug, and they were advertising it, so \ve 

8 went over to see it. 

9 Q. Alld who did you talk to? 

10 A. I really can't recall it other than James. I 09:31 

11 don't recall his last name. 

12 Q. Who is the first marketing employee that you 

13 remember talking to, that ~'ou remember their flame? 

14 IL You mean his whole name? Is that what you 

IS mean? 09:31 

16 Q. Other than JoIDes? 

A. Oh, other than James. \o\l e1l, after the building 

18 was built, and we visited it many times, visiting our 

19 fr-iends here, eating dinner here, meeting the other 

20 residents and finally making the decision that de3pite 09:32 

21 my relatively young age and my housemate's age, tDdt we 

22 maybe we should consider moving here, and so at that 

23 time one of our friends said why don't you talk to 

24 Kristine Cram, so that's the ODe we spoke with. 

Q. When was that, approximately? 09:32 
28 
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1 A. It must have been in 1998, approximately. 09:32 

2 Q. After the property was being run by Classic 

3 Residence by Hyatt? 

4 A. I really can't say. I don't know who was 

5 running it. It was Dot -­ I thi~t it was still in 09:32 

6 bankruptcy. I don't remember when it came out of 

7 bankruptcy. 

8 Q. And what did Kristine ,Cram tell you about the 

9 propertj,'? 

10 !'-lR. CONGER: It's over broad. You can answer. 09:33 

11 THE WITNESS: Well, she just reiterated
• 

12 everything that was in the brochures and the flyers and 

13 the lovely,- gorgeous materials about the facility. We 

14 were interested, of course, in finding a unit that was 

to our best advantage, and we knew a lot about the 09:33 

16 building I having been there man'}' I many times. We knew 

17 alr~ady about all of the wonderful amenities, and so it 

18 was really -­ it really got down to the finances and 

19 which apartment would we like. 

~o BY MS. LANE: 09:33 

21 Q. Did you talk to any oth~r marketing employees 

during the sales process? 

23 A. As best I can recall, Kristine was the ollly Olle 

24 that W"3 spoke with. 

25 Q. F.nd is she still employed by Hyat t I by Classic 09:34 
29 
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1 nurse -- 10:20 

L'1S. LANE: Yes.
 

3 MR. CONGER: or that this sentence provides
 

4 for a nurse?
 

BY '18. LANE: 10:20 

6 Q. This sentence provides for a nurse. 

7 A. This sentence does not say nurse. I agree that 

8 that lS what it says. 

9 Q. And were you told during the time that you ·were 

signing this in June of 1999 that there would be a nurse 10:20 

11 24 hours per day? 

12 A. Yes. I was made aware of that through other 

13 literature ... 
14 Q. What literature? 

.~ . All of the flyers, all the literatur~ that they 10:~1 

16 were given, that there HOUlj:l.tae 24-hour response by a• 
17 nurse, a licensed nurse . It did not say whether it was ... 
18 LVN or P.N. 

19 Q. And specifically what literature was that 

rEoferenced'? 10:21 

21 If you recall. 

THE liHTNES3; I don't know them by name. I can 

23 just say that all of the material that we were ever 

24 given through the sal~s office stated that. 

54 
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1 as set forth in this agreement, with a portion of that 10:56 

2 loan being repaid to you determined by the length of
 

3 time you are a resident of the community."
 

4 Did you read that provision before signing in
 

the year 2000? 10:56 

6 A. Yes, I did. 

7 Q. Did you have any questions about that 

8 provision? 

9 A. I asked for an explanation from -- yes. 

Q. What was your question? 10:56 

11 A. Have it explained to m8. 

Q. And who did you ask that to? 

13 I asked it of the sales consultant I had, plus 

1~ the executive director. 

Q. AJ1d who was the sales consultant? 10:57 

16 A. Kristine Cram. 

17 Q. And ttle executive director? 

18 A. Vicky Simpson. 

19 Q. What did Kristine Cram say when you asked her 

for an explanation? 10:57 

21 Well, what was back on the ottler page, that 

22 said after 50 months because of the purchase that there 

23 would be no money corning back to me. 

24 Q. So whel1 you asked her to explain tJlj_S 

provision, she said what? 10:57 
8l 
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1 A. That it would go do,vn every month that I was 10:57 

2 there until past 50 months, there would be no money 

3 left. 

4 Q. What would go down? 

A. The amount of mODey that was paid 1D as all 10:57 

6 entrance fee. 

7 Q. Did you ask her about the language about the 

8 entrance fee being a loan to Classic Residence by Hyatt? 

9 A. No, I did not. The best of my knowledge, I do 

not remember asking about what that meant. 10:58 

11 Q. So what was your question about this provision? 

12 A. To explain to me if I decided to leave 

13 sometime, what mODey there would be left coming tack to 

14 me, and she explained. 

Q. And you asked the same question of Viety 10:58 

16 Simpson? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. And what did she say? 

19 I\. The same thing that Kristine said. 

Q. .;nd do you have 2-DY reason to believe that 10:58 

21 that's not the case? 

22 A. No. 

23 NH. CONGER: The question is vague and 

24 ambiguous. IOU can answer. 

82 
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1 and when we should be tL"ansterred to the care facility	 11: 41 

2 that was soon to be bllilt.
 

3 Q. And. when you 53'}' "nc increase in the fee," you
 

4 mean other than the reglliar monthlY fee increases that
 

are spelled out in the agreement?	 11: 41 

•0, . That is correct. . 

Q. And who was the person to explaill that entrance
 

S fee to you?
 

9 A. O"iJr salesper son.
 

Q. Kristine Cram? 11: 41 

11 A. That is correct. 

12 Q. And what was your initial mOIlthly fee? 

13 MR. CONGER: If you recall. 

14 THE WITNESS: Well, it's on Page 3. 

BY MS. LANE:	 11:42 

16 Q. And what was it?
 

17 A. $2,325 plus $550 for the second person.
 

18 Q. And what is your current monthly fee, if you
 

19 know?
 

A. It's roughly -- it's only roughly -- 3800. 11: 42 

21 Q. Total? 

22 A. Yes, ma'am. 

23 Q. And what did you understand your monthly fee to 

24 include? 

A.	 Well, everything that was in any of the 11:42 
103 
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1 brochures: Occupancy of our apartment, weekly cleaning, 11: 42 

2 dinillg facilities, use of all facilities in the
 

3 building, emergency service, and eventual possible
 

4 transfer to a memory support or assisted in skilled
 

nUl-,sing. 11:43 

6 Q. And you understood the monthly fees to cover 

7 those things; is that right? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. Including the transfer to the skilled nursing 

or the care center? 11 : .'J 3 

11 A. That our monthly fees, yes, that's what I 

12 understood. 

13 Q. And have you been happy while living at La 

14 Jolla Village Towers? 

A. I have had periods of great happiness, yes. 11:43 

16 Q. I know this is a broad question, but why? What 

17 has made it a happy experience? 

18 MR. CONGER: It's vague as to tlm~. You can 

19 answer. 

THE WITNESS: I'm sorr']'? 11 : 43 

21 MR. CONGER: I said tile question is ,rague as to 

22 time. You may answer. 1 1 m sorry, Casey. I h'as 

23 mumbling. 

24 THE WITNESS: Well, of all tlle reaSDns stated. 

I	 had somebody else ·was worrYlng about a lot 0;: 11 : 44 
104 
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1 BY !"]$. LF.NE: 01:57 

2 Q. v'lhen J:'ou entered into the agreeHlsnt with 

3 Classi.c Residence by Hyatt in 2000, were you under the 

4 belief that Classic Residence was required to set aside 

5 a portion of your entrance fee for any reason? 01:57 

6 A. Yes. 

7 Q. And what was your belief? 

8 A. My belief? It was written, it was told to me 

9 that the]' would set aside a portion for long-term care. 
~ . 

10 Q. And you said it was written and told to you. 01:58 

11 Where was it written? 

12 A .__ID....a.1.1...t.h..e;.b.r.o.c.h.u;,;or.8.s..t.fii'.a.t..I..r;,;oe.ciieii".'viiiie.d•.iiii
13 Q. Can you describe the brochures at all 

14 specifically, which brocllures? 

IS A. No, I cannot at this time. I don't recall. 01:58 

16 Q. So, as you sit here today, you do not remember 

17 a specific document that required Classic Eesidence by 

18 Hyatt to set aside a portion of your elltral-lce fee? 

19 fvJR. COlJGEP: That question, the required part, 

20 calls for a legal conclusion. But you can answer the 01:58 

21 question. 

THE WITNESS: I don't recall which documents, 

~3 but I believe it was in all of the brochures and 

24 literature and the verbal words that came from the 

25 salespeople wit~l regard to the long-term care, i_lleluding 01:58 
136 
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1 $18,000 for the secolld persoll, would exclusively be 01:58
 

2 used, set aside for long-term care.
 

3 BY MS. LANE:
 

4 Q. Who in the marketing department told you that?
 

5 A. Speak a little louder because I llave a hearing 01:59
 

6 loss.
 

7 Q. Who in the marketing department told you that?
 

8 A. Kristine Cram.
 

9 Q. And what exactly did she tell you?
 

10 A. What I just said. 01:59
 

11 Q. Did she say anything different than the
 

12 brochures said that you described?
 

13 A. Not that I recall.
 

14 Q. Now, did she tell you what portion of your
 

15 entrance fee would be set aside? 01:59
 

16 A. I do not recall her saying a specific amount.
 

17 Q. Did she tell you where that money would be set
 

18 aside?
 

19 A. You mean like which bank or something?
 

20 Q. Or even In an account or what would happen to 01:59
 

21 that money?
 

•n, . I do not recall . 

Q. Anyone other than Kristine Cram. 

1'·)0. 

2S Q. Did you understand that you would continue to 02:00 
137 

Veritext National Deposition & Litigation Services 
866299-5127 



5

10

15

20

25

1 pay monthly fees upon moving into the care center; is 02:00 

2 that correct? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. And did you understand that a portion of those 

monthly fees ''''QuId go towards payment for the care 02:00 

6 center? 

7 A. No, I donlt believe I understood that. 

8 Q. Did you believe that none of those monthly fees 

9 WGuld go 

A. 

towards the care center? 

At the end of each year we received a 
"I 

letter 02:00 

11 from the controller, Carolyn Zhuel, that stated a 

12 portion of our fees were in fact going for a wellness 

13 center and for -­ and if you had just moved in, a 

14 portion of your entrance fee could be deducted for 

prepaid long-term care. 02:01 

16 Q. So did you believe that monthly fees -­

17 fl.. Part of the ITloJlthly fees. 

18 Q. ~- would go towards the care center? 

19 A. No, would go for the wellness center. 

Q. Okay. Did you believe that a portion of the 02:01 

21 mom fees would go towards the care center? 

A. No, I don't believe I believed that. I don't 

believe I believed that. I don't recall that. 

24 Q. Did you believe that none of the monthly fees 

would	 go to~ards payment for the care center? 02:01 
138 
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1 BY MS. L}l,.NE:	 02:03 

2 Q. What do you mean what you thought was
 

3 independent?
 

4 A. Well, wIlen somebody has a lot of assistive
 

devices and an attendant with them, I don!t call that 02:03 

6 individual resident independent anymore. And they are 

7 living in the same building I am living in? We were 

B told that a new licensing thing allowed ttlem to have 

9 these people there. 

Q. And \..:hen you said that memos, you said memos 02:04 

11 gave you this impression, what memes were you referring 

12 to? 

13 IL Well, there was a memo from, I believe it was 

14 executive director Mr. Hayes, who was the current -- the 

director at the time that the health care center opened. 02:04 

16 They were going to -- that it '.vBS Dot going to be "-- we 

17 were not going to be charged for operating losses, for.. 
18 example, because we asked that many times ill resident..	 

•
19 council meetings...	 • 

Q. Oka:y' . Tell me about those times. What 0'2:04 

21 happened ill the resident courlcil meetings? 

A. The qtJestion was asked that you just asted me, 

23 and we were told no, we were not going to pay for the 

24 care -- the health care center. 

Q.	 Who told you that in the resident council 02:04 
141 
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1 BY MS. LANE: 02:28
 

2 Q. Let's talk about the monthly fees. Do you
 

3 believe that Classic Reside!lCe by Hyatt is atterrlptillg to
 

4 minimize your monthly fees?
 

MR. CONGER: Okay. I would instruct the 02:29 

6 witness not to answer when you are asking the present 

7 tense as opposed to past tense questions, because I 

8 believe it calls for a party's contentioll in the case. 

9 You are just substituting the word belief for 

contention. So I instruct you not to answer. 02:29 

11 BY MS. LANE: 

12 Q. Prior to the filing of this lawsuit, did you 

13 believe that Classic Residellce by Hyatt was atterrlpting 

14 to minimlze your monthly fee increases? 

A. Yes. 02:29 

16 Q. And what is that based on? 

17 A. Memoranda that 1tJe received. They were doing----------_.
18 their utmost, rest assured th~t we are looking at all of 

19 our contracts to do buying in large amounts to reduce 

cost. They changed all the light bulbs in the building 02:30 

21 to reduce the electrical bill. They kept assuring us - • 
22 that we were doing -- that they were doing as much as 

. 
23 they could to minimize cost. 

-, nr" 

24 Q. And do 1:'OIJ believe th-)se assurances were true? 

MR. CONGER: Objection. Instruct nc.,t to 02:30 
160 
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1 answer. Ttlat calls for a party's contention in the 02:30 

2 case. You are asking her do you believe that they have
 

3 defrauded you. That's what you are asking her. And I
 

4 instruct you nct to 2:11Swer.
 

MS. Lp.NE: That's not what I am asking her. I 02:30 

6 can rephrase my question. 

7 BY )\lS. LANE: 

8 Q. Do you believe -- and I am talking about the
 

9 lawsuit was filed in December of 2006. So in November
 

of 2006 did you believe tlla~ Classic Residence by Hyatt 02:30 

11 was doing its best to minimize the monthly fee 

12 increases? 

13 A. I think by 2006 I was beginning to doubt they 

14 were minimizing ou~ fees. 

Q. Why? 02:31 

16 A. Because they kept increasing our monthly fees 

17 despite diminishing the amenities that we had available 

18 to us and told us it was insurance, workers' eonlp . 

19 Q. .;::I,.nd do you have reaSGn to believe that the 

increases were not due to insurance or workers 1 CO!TIP? 02:31 

21 MR. CONGER: I instruct you not to answer. 

2~ That question calls for a party's case in violation of 

23 Rifkind versus Superior Court. Present tellse questions, 

24 I'J_l object to everyone of them when you are asking for 

contentions, every single one llfltil we get this worked 02:31 
161 

Vcritext National Deposition & Litigation Services 
866299-5127 



5

10

15

20

25

1 BY I'1S. LANE: 02:32 

2 Q. In November 2006, before you filed this 

3 lawsuit, did you have any reasorl to believe that the 

4 statement that Classic Residence by Hyatt was not maKlny 

a profit was not tru~?	 02:32 

A. I feel like itls a double neg6tive. Did I feel
 

7
 

8 Q. I'm sorry. In No·vember of 2006, so before the
 

9 lawsuit was filed
 

A. Right. 02:33 

11 Q. -- did you have any reason to believe that the 

12 statements that you just referred to, that Classic 

13 Residence was not making a profit, did you have reason 

14 the believe that statement was untrue? 

A. I really didn't know. 02:33 

16 Q. Let I S go on to the 24-hour emergency' response 

17 lssue. What was the 24-hour emergency response program 

18 when you moved into the community? 

19 A. When I moved into the towers? La Jolla Village 

Towers? There were call buttons in all of the rooms, 02:33 

21 including the bathrooms. We were instructed to push one 

22 button every morning to alert the concierge, or somebody 

13 who checked it, that we were upright and breathing, and 

24 that if we needed anything in an emergency we were to 

call	 that button, and they were going to call us, or if 02:3~ 
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1 we called fOI assistallce, that a nurse, a licensed nurse 02:34
 

2 would come and investigate what we needed.
 

3 Q. And did you ever use that system?
 

4 A. No! I have not.
 

Q. what were the benefits that you saw of that 02:34 

6 system? 

7 A. Well, I think itls rather obvious that if in 

8 fact I was in my apartment by myself and I fell in the 

9 bathroom or somethillg, I could pull a cord, if I could 

reach it, and somebody would come to my assistance. 02:35 

11 Q. And are there still call buttons in the room? 

12 A. Yes, there ale. 

13 Q. And are there still the pull cords that you are 

14 referring to? 

A. Yes. 02:35 

16 Q. And is there still the process where you push 

17 the buttons in the morning to let the concierges know? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. So how did the program change? 

A. Well, the buttons and the calling and, you 02:35 

21 know, pulling your buttOll, not that I ever have, in the 

22 morning button pushing, itls not changed. What has 

23 ctlanged is that if you call for assistance, even -- I 

24 guess it has changed. If yOll pull one of those buzzers, 

you	 are going to either get a phone call from the 02:35 
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1 concierges or a security gua~d to come up and find out 02:35 

2 what the ~roblem is. 

3 Q. And when did :he program change? 

4 .~ . I don't recall. 

Q. D~es 2005 sound correct? 

6 A. I would say it was before that. 

7 Were there any meetings held regarding this 

8 change in systems? 

9 A. It "ras menticr:ed at a resident c:)uncil meeting, 

yes. 

11 Q. What was said about the change? 

12 A. They said you would =a11 the wellness clinic 

13 from 8:00 until 4:00 or 5:00, and a:ter that some nurse 

14 would be OIl call, or if it was ~rteL 11:00 at night, 

that the concierges would call security and they would 

16 come. 

17 And the ~urrent program is called the first 

18 responder program; is that right? 

19 A. Thht i,s correct. 

Q. Did they give you the -­ they, I am saying at 

21 these meetings. Were there reasons given for the change 

22 to the first responder program? 

23 A. l'n sure there were, but I don't recall what 

24 they _are. 

Q. Do you recall that it would [lave been a 

02:35 

02:36 

02:36 

02:36 

02:36 
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1 faster -- it lS a faster response under the firs: 02:36 

2 re~ponder program? 

3 A. Do I recall Lllat they said'this? 

4 Q. Yes. 

A. I don't rec3.ll. 02:36 

6 Q. Do you recall that th~~' said this was a sater 

7 program under the fi~st responder program? 

8 e.. I do not recall them scying that. 

9 Q. On Y0~ reca~l being given 0 talk by the 

San Diego Fire Department 3bout the program? 02: 37 

11 A. Yes, I do. 

12 Q. And do you recal.l. that they endorsed the 

13 program? 

14 A. = believe se, yes. 

What did the San Diego ?ire Department say 02:37 

16 about the program? 

17 A. They said it would be helpful. 

18 Q. What e~se dij they say? 

19 .~ . I don't recall. It's been quite a while ago. 

Q. Cld anyone tell you wher. you moved in that 02:37 

21 nurses would also be available 2~ hours a day? 

A. Specifically those words'? 

23 Q. Y'2S. 

24 A. Say the words or' write the words? 

Q.	 Did anyone -- did you learn from any source 02:37 
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1 that nurse response 24 hours a day lS a prograrr that 02:37 ..
 
2 would also always be in effect? 

3 

4 

A. I belie've that I S ""hat 

the brochures, yes. 

I understC'od in readinq 

• 

So that und8rst;anding came from the JJr~chures? (J2:j(j 

6 Yes. 

"7 Q. Anywhere else? 

A. Not that I recall. 

Q. And it's your belief that the brochures said 

10 that that program not only that it did exist at that 02,38 

11 point in time, b~t that it would always exist? 

Let me say thaL LlldL was illy assunptlon. 

13 Q. Dc you recall that being conve'y'ed to you In any 

14 form, whether it be brochure or ora~ly? 

IS A. Other th30 the brochur~? 02,38 

16 Q. Well, that is my question. You said that was 

17 assumption it would continue, but wss there &nything 

18 that told you tha: it would continue indefinitely? 

10 A. N(). I dOIl't recall seeing anyone sayin1 this 

20 would go on forever. 02:38 

21 Q. And do you kno~ whether it was required by your 

22 contract, your agreement with C1assio Residence by 

23 Hyatt, that this program would go on forever? 

24 HR. CONGER: Ohj PC t ion, Instruct you not to 

25 That calls for a party's contention in tile (J2:39 
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1 BY MS. LANE: C3:0:. 

2 Q. And, Ms. Meehan, do you understend th2t you are 

3 still ullder oath? 

4 A. Yes, I und8rstand. 

5 Q. Before the break we discus~ed your U3:05 

6 understanding, in entering the community in 1999 and 

7 2000, about a portien of your entrance fee being set 

8 aside to fUlld lo])g-term care. Do YQU remember that 

9 discussion? 

10 A. Yes. 03:05 

11 Q. I want to clarify, and I realize that we have 

12 gone through this ullce, but I do want to talk to you 

13 more about 'Nhet-e you heard that information or Vlllere you 

14 got that informat~on that a portion of jOllr entrance fee 

15 would be set aside. 03:05 

16 MR. CONGER: Okay. Wait for a qLestion. 

17 BY MS. LANE: 

18 Q. I asked where tid you get that information? 

19 MR. CONGER: Asked and answered. You can 

20 iO:l1swer it at;:ain. 03:05 

21 THE WITNESS: From all the orophures.
.~~~~.. 

22 BY MS. LANE:
 

23 Q. Anywhere other than the brochures?
 

24 A. Not th~t I c~n recall.
 

Q. And is it your understandlng tllat ttle morley 03:06 
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1 Q. Right. Knowing ~hat you know now about the 03:13 

2 construc~ionf would you have moved In in 1999 or 2000: 

A. Probably not. 

4 Q. And in 1999 when you signed the agreeme~t to 

5 move into the =ommunity, if you had knowD that you would 03:14 

6 have h~d the ability to enter into the care ~erlteL 

7 without paying any difference in monthly fees between 

8 independent li'ring and the care center, but that a 

9 portion of your entranc~ fee wouldn't be set aside in 

10 some separate account, would you have still signed the 03:14 

11 con~inuing care residency agreement? 

12 MR. CONGER: Assu~es facts not in ?vidence as 

13 phrased. You can answe2'. 

14 THE r.qITNESS: I don't think so. I f I didn't 

15 knot-I? 03 ~ 14 

16 BY MS. LANE: 

17 Q.:f it ~as ycur understanding, which is t~e 

18 case, that your monthly fees wouldn't increase when you 

19 were moving into the care center -­

10 1\. Correct. 03:14 

21 -­ but that a portion of your entranl:e fees 

22 weren't 'Jciwj to be set aside in some account for 

23 lo"g-term care, ,"ould you stIll have enl~Led into the 

24 continuing care residency agreem-:'Tlt? 

25 NR. COKGER: Well, that question assumes facts 03:14 
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1 not iJ1 evidence and presents a hypothetical, but yOll can 03:14 

2 answer the question. 

3 THE WITNESS: But, see, I did understand tl13t 

4 thatrs ]10W it was going to be, especially with the 

5 18,000 extra dollars. 03:14 

6 BY 1-1S. LANE: 

7 Q. But my question to you, though, is if you 

8 under­ -­ if you -­ in 1999, if you were entering into 

9 the cOHununity, and you knew that your monthly fees \~'ould 

10 stay the same when you moved into the care center 03:15 

11 A. Which I did know. That's what they told me. 

12 Q. And whictl is true, correct? 

13 A. Uh-huh. 

14 MR. CONGER: Wait, hold it. Tllat calls for a 

party's contention in ttle case. I instruct you not to 03:15 

16 anS~Jer whether that's true or not. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

18 MR. CONGER: We have glven you 25 pages about 

19 why that's net true. 

20 BY IvlS. LANE: 03:15 

If you had known that a portion of your 

22 entrance fee wouldn't be set aside, yet your monthly 

23 fees would remain the same, like they do, would Y01~ have 

24 moved into the care ~enter in 1999? 

25 i~R. CONGER: TJ"l@ ql~estion assumes facts not in 03:15 
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1 evidence and it's compound. You can answer. 03:15 

) THE WITNESS: No. 

3 BY IvJS. LANE: 

4 Q. Why? 

A. Because I would doubt that I was going to be 03:15 

6 able to continue to live at a price that I could i~arry 

7 monthly. 

8 Q. So your concern would have been ~- your concern 

9 wOlJld have been wtlat tl1en? 

A. That my prepaid long-term care was really not 03:16 

11 going to be there ",'hen I needed it. 

12 And have you ever been denied care at the care 

13 center? 

14 A. Not at this time, nco. 

Q. And have you ever been given any indication 

16 that you will be denied care in the care center? 

17 A. No. 

18 Q. So explain the concern to me. 

19 A. My concern lS that yearly we are shown In 

budgetary meetings and literature that the car~ center 03: 16 

21 is operating at a loss. 

22 Q. .Z\re you aware of anyone in the communi t.y' that 

23 has eve.::- been denied care in the car,=, center? 

24 1L I am not al\'are of anyone. I do not know that. 

Q.	 You also mentioned, I had asked you if the 03:17 
J87 

Verilext National Deposition & Litigation Services 
866299-5127 



5

10

15

20

25

1 co~nsel. 03:19 

2 MR. CONGER: Casey, I want to talk to you 

3 outside for Q 3ccond. 

4 THE WITNESS: Okey. 

MS. LANE: fie car_ go of f the record. 03;19 

6 THE V::: [IEOGR.P,PHER: We are going uff the recOl.-d. 

7 The tirrle is 3:20. 

8 (Pecess) 

9 THE VIDEOGRAPHFR: ('Ie are go':'ng ba:::::k on the 

record. The time is 3:25. 03;24 

11 BY MS. LANE; 

12 Q. And, Ms. Meehan, vou understcnrl that you are 

13 still under oat11? 

14 A. '.:e8, I do. 

Q. ':'he qU2stion that I have for you, that I don't 03:?4 

16 believe has bee:l. ans~vered yet, is that in 1999 and 2000 

17 W33 it your understanjing that even for people that were 

18 not going into the care center, just t~ose individuals 

19 that were going to be living lJ1 indepe~dent living, is 

it y~ur understal~dlIIY tllat a portion o~ their entrance 03: '2 5 

21 fee was goil~g to be used to fund the care ce~ter? 

A. I den't know what ~nybody else was tllinkillg. I 

21 don't Y.:n,.:;.w ~bout anybody Io.'ho moved into the ':r)wers 

24 thinking t:"ley were only going to live in the independent 

living. My understanding was that a portion of the 03:25 
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money that we paid of $383,675 \~as going to gc' for 03:25 .. 
prepaid long-term care for two people forever until we 

a 
3 died. That's what I understood.
 

4 I do not recall that it ever said to pay for
 

the health care center. It just said you are paying for 03:26 

6 long-term care prepaid, and thatls what I believed and 

7 thatls wllat I understood. And that's what I feel like 

8 maybe it's not going to happen. 

9 Q. So in 1999 and 2000, what was your 

understanding then of how the care center would be 03:26 

11 fl.-mded if it wouldn't be with monthly fees and if your 

12 entrance fee waS going towards this prepaid long-term 

13 care, how did you think the care center would be funded? 

14 11R. CONGER: Assumes that she has such an 

understanding. You can anS'der. 03:26 

16 THE WITNESS: I had no idea hov! they vlere going 

17 to do it. 

18 BY MS. LANE: 

19 Q. Did you ever ask anyone? 

A. No. O~: 26 

21 Q. \!Jhy not? 

22 A. I figured It W~5 their business. They told me 

23 what they would do if I paid this amount of mOlley, and I 

24 believed them and I paid it. 

Q.	 Earlier you Ila,j testified t)lat if yOI] had known 03:27 
192 

Veritext National Deposition & Litigation Senices 
866299-5127 



1 in 1999 what you nm,' know abc'ut the construction and hov..7 03:27 

it's gone, you probably 

3 A. 

4 Q. What you knew -­ what you knew now about the 

5 construction. If you krlevi then Hhat :you know about the 0.3:27 

6 construction in 1999, that you probably would not have 

7 entered the La Jolla Village Towers as a resident. Now, 

8 you said probably not. Are you certain tilat you 

9 wouldn't have entered at that time? 

10 You want me to think about what I was doing In 03:27 

11 1999? 

12 Q. I want you to tell me whether or not you are 

13 certain that you would not have entered the community In 

14 1999 if you had known then what you know now about 

15 constructioD;' 03:27 

16 !'JE. CONGEF::: I think the question is over broad 

17 and vague about, quote, what you know about 

18 construction, but you can answer. 

19 THE II'JITNESS: Well, what I know now is more 

than just the constructiorl inconveniences, diminishing 03:27 

21 of servi-:es. It also i.tlVolves ttle fact that we have 

22 found ')ut that there isn't any money available in a 

23 trust or something. And for that reason if I had known 

24 that, I would definitely not ha."iTe c,:)ITle in. 

25 
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1 .~ . Yes. 09:29 

2 Q. Is there ~ny language in this letter that led 

3 you to believe that monej.' paid vJ..Juld be set aside in a 

4 separate account to fund long-term care? 

MR. CONGER: Calls for speculation. You can 

6 answer. -
7 THE 1iHTNESS: The origillal agreement that I 

8 signed stated that a percentage or that money would be 

9 set aside which I believe for prepald long-term care. 

This dOCUmeJlt and the one before so states that. That 

11 total of your entrance fee paid is considered to be for 

12 prepaid long-term care. I believe that that's what 

13 Hyatt said in all tlleir brochures, and that's what 1 

14 believed. 

BY MS. LANE: 

16 Q. Now, you first said that the document that you 

17 signed said that money would be set aside for prepaid 

18 long-term care. \il7hat document are you referring to? 

19 MR. CONGER: [1isstates her t,estimony. She said 

the word agreemeut. You can answer. 

21 BY MS. LANE: 

Q. What agreement are you referring to? 

23 A. I am referring to the original agreement to 

24 move into the towers; that. I i ..ould be -­ a portion of my 

entrance fee would be for long-term care, eztensive 

09:29 

09:29 

09: 29 

09:30 

09:30 
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1 long-term care for two individuals. 09:30 

2 Q. And that \~'3S the agreement that we reviewed
 

3 yesterday-­

4 A. Yes.
 

Q. -- your continuing care retirement agreement? 09:30 

6 A. That is true. 

7 Q. Now, this letter, does it say that money would 

8 be set aside ill a separate account to fund prepaid 

9 long-term care? 

MR. CONGER: Asked and answered. Harassing. 09:30 

11 The document speaks for itself. You may answer the 

12 question. 

13 THE WITNESS: I do not see those words "set 

14 aside" in this document. 

BY MS. LJI.NE: 09:30 

16 Q. Did you, ill fact, take a deduction based on 

17 this letter? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. And again you haven't consulted your tax 

advisor or the IRS about your current belief that those 09:30 

21 deductions were wrongly taken:' 

22 I'm. CONGER: That assumes facts not In 

evidence, and it's been 8sked and answered. You can 

'[HE WIT1JSSS: No. 09:30 
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1 MR. CONGER: Also it misstated her testimony. 09:31 

2 MS. LANE: Mark this as Exhibit 28. 

3 (Exhibit 28 was marked for' 

4 identification. ) 

5 BY t1S. LJ\NE: 09:31 

6 Q. Have you e'ver seen this document before? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. When was the first time that you saw ttlis 

9 document? 

10 A. February of '03. 09:31 

11 Q. And again did you ~- what ~s this document 

12 regarding? 

13 MR. CONGER: The document speaks for itself. 

14 You can answer. 

15 THE WITNESS; Medical tax deduction, monthly 

16 fees. 

17 BY MS. LP.NE: 

18 And sgain it says that a portion of monthly 

19 fees -­ and this is in italics -­ may be deductible as a 

20 medical expense subject to certain limitations. Do you 09:32 

21 see thEit? 

A. Yes, I do. 

23 Q. Is there 3Jlywhere in this letter that says that 

24 money would be a set aside in separat~ aCCOullt to fund 

long-term care? 09:32 
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1 point to any specific provision within the CeRA that 09:38 

2 gave yOlJ that belief; is that correct? 

A. That is correct.
 

4 MS. LANE: Are we on 30?
 

THE REPORTER: Yes. 09:39 

6 (Exhibit 30 was marked for 

7 identification. ) 

8 BY t1S. LANE: 

9 Q. Have you seen this document before? 

A. Yes. 09:40 

11 Q. And what is the title of tJlis document? 

12 A. "Medical Tax Deduction." 

13 Q. And this is a letter dated March 15, 2004, to 

14 Dear Resident from Carolyn Zuehl; is that correct? 

A. Yes. 09:40 

16 Q. And this again states that you should seek 

17 advice from your tax consultant and other advisors 

18 regardillg your eligibility for medical tax deductiollS; 

19 lS that correct? 

A. It so states. 09:40 

21 Q. And you did seek that advice, as we have 

22 establis~jed; is that correct? 

23 Yes. 

24 I'm. ACKER: Michael, I assume you instructed 

them that there wouldJ1 l t be conversations during this. 
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1 (Exhibit 31 was marked for 09:42 

2 identificatiun.) 

3 BY MS. LANE: 

4 Q. Have you ever seen this document before? 

5 A. Yes. 09: .:1 2 

6 Q. When was the first time that you saw it? 

7 A. I don't recall. 

8 Q. Did you receive a -­ have you €:ver seen it 

9 before the litigation began? 

10 111R. CONGER: If you recall. 09: 42 

11 THE WITNESS: I don't recall. 

12 BY MS. LANE: 

13 Q. Do you recall seeing this document before 

l~ moving into the community? 

15 MR. CONGER: Calls for speculation based On her 09:43 

16 previous answer. You can answer. 

17 THE WITNESS: I don't recall. 

18 BY MS. LANE: 

19 Q. Do you recall whether this document convinced 

20 you ~n any respect to move into the community? 09:43 

~l A. In itself? 

22 Q. This document. 

23 A. ,Just this one document? 

24 Q. Yes. 

~5 .e. Well, Slnce I donlt recall when I saw it, 09:43 
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whether it \\lould be before or after I moved in, I'd have 09:43 

2 to say I don't recall utilizing this information 

3 specifically in this document to convince me to move In. 

4 Q. And what is this document? 

.~ . It's called a continuum of care . 09:43 

6 Q. Do you believe it to be a portion of a 

7 brochure? 

8 MR. CONGER: Calls for speculation. You can 

9 answer. 

THE WITNESS: I don't know it looks like it, 09:43 

11 but I don't know specifically if it was, 

12 BY MS. LANE: 

13 Q. Yesterday during your deposition you 

14 referenced, I think you said that everything you ever 

received from the marketing department promised that 09:44 

16 nurses would be available 24 hours a day. Do you 

17 remember that testimony? 

18 MR. Cm·jGER: t1isstates testlIl\Ony. You can 

19 answer. 

THE WITllESS: Yes. 09:44 

21 BY MS. LANE: 

Q. Would 

lS this one of 

24 1:.. • Yes. 

Q. otO}' . So y·,JU do remember that this is one of 
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1 the documents that you received from the marketing 09:44 

2 department? 

3 A. Well, as I said, I do not remember when I 

4 received it. I know I have received it, but I don't 

remember when. 09:44 

6 ,
1<. Okay. Let's look at the documents itself. You 

7 said that it was titled "Continuum of Care"? 

B A. Uh-huh. 

9 Q. The first there are three categories in this 

document. Do you see that? The first category states 09:44 

11 "rental agreenlent coverage"? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. The second category states "continuing care 

14 agreement cO'\Terage prior to care completion"? 

.~ . Yes . 09; 44 

16 Q. .lI.nd the third category is "continuing care 

17 agreement coverage after completion of the care center." 

18 Do you see those three -­ those three categories? 

19 A. Yes. 

Q. And is it your understanding that there was a 09:45 

21 period of time l:Jhen the corrummity, as run by Classic 

.=2 Residence by H,;;,att, was a rental community? 

23 MR. CONGER; That calls for speculation based 

24 on her previous allswer. She said she did,,' t know ".'hich 

of the ITlal1y Hyatt entities ran what. You can anSV!er. 09:45 
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1 Is that what the hours of the office at the 09:51 

2 wellness center are today, if you know? 

3 F.. I really do not know. 

4 Q. And did anything in this document lead you to 

5 believe that nurses would be available 24 hours a day or 09:51 

6 around the clock? 

7 A. No. 

8 ~lS. LANE: rId like to mark this as Exhibit 33. 

9 (Exhibit 33 was marked for 

10 identification.) 

11 BY MS. LANE: 

12 Have you ever seen this document before? 

13 Yes. 

14 Q. Do you remember the first time that you -­ when 

15 the first time was when you saw this document? 09:53 

16 A. I do not :cecall. 

17 Q. And what is this dOCUlTIent? 

18 A. It looks like a brochure, l.iterature. 

19 Q. A marketing brochure? 

20 A. A market ing brochure f yes, uh--huh. 09:53 

21 Q. De you have any reason to believe that you 

2;: relied on this brochure in making your decision to enter 

23 La Jolla Village Towers? 

24 A. Since I don't recall when I saw it, I donlt 

know if I specifically relied on this document or not. 09:53 
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] Q. And again your testimony yesterday was that all 09:5~ 

2 of the documents that you received from marketing led 

3 you to believe that nurses would be available 24 hours a 

4 day; is that correct'? 

MR. CONGER: That misstates her testimony. 09: 54 

6 Asked and ansh'ered. You can answer it again. 

7 THE WITNESS: If that's what I stated, that's 

8 what I believed. 

9 BY !:'is. LANE; 

Q. CaD you show me what in this document brochure 09: 54 

11 led you to believe that nursing staff wOllld be available 

12 24 hours a day? 

13 A. I said I did not recei,re this -­ necessarily 

14 remerrtber thi s document. 

HR. CONGER: Let me interpose an objection. 09:54 

16 That questioll assumes facts not in evidence. But you 

17 can answer if you are able to go through thi,5 document 

18 and identify something. 

19 THE WITNESS: Since I don't know where I got 

it, I -­ I can't hardly say that. I donlt recall. 09:54 

21 BY MS. LANE: 

22 Q. P.nd Mr. Conger or somebody has gone through and 

23 underlined ar,d highlighted portions that he or she 

24 thought was important in this document. Do any of those 

portions say anytbing that you can see about nursing 09:55 
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1 care available 24 hours a day, around the clock, 09:55 

2 whatever language you ctloose? 

3 MR. CONG~R: Assumes facts not in evidence. 

4 You can answer if you can. 

THE WITNESS: Not those that are highlighted, 09:55 

6 no. 

7 BY MS. LANE: 

8 Q. The final bracketed portion that has beel' 

9 bracketed, I think it~s on Page Short 1105, do you see 

that? 09:55 

11 .'\. Yes, I do. 

12 Q. It states that: "Under our continuing care 

13 plans, residents will be able to move to our on-site 

14 care center, offering high quality assistive living, 

memory support j Alzheimer's care and skilled nursing, if 09:55 

16 the need should arise, at virtually no increase in our 

17 nlonth1y fee"; is that correct? 

18 •n., • That's what it states . 

19 Q. That final portion of this sentence we 

discussed at length yesterday, and it is your contention 09:55 

21 that if you were to move to the care center, this 

22 language remains true, that there would be no increase 

23 in your current monthly fee that you are paying in the 

24 independent living to\,>/ers; is that correct? 

MR. CONGER: I object and instr~ct the witness 09:56 
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1 the litigation; is that correct? 10:17 

2 A. That is correct. 

3 MS. LANE: Exhibit 37. 

4 (Exhibit 37 was marked for 

identification. ) 10:18 

6 BY MS. LP.NE: 

7 Q. This is a letter dated March 2003 stating Dear 

8 Neighbors signed by Jeff 'lipton: is that correct? 

9 A. Yes. 

Q. And to me this letter looks like something that 10:18 

11 ""as sent to people that '..Jere not currently living in the 

12 towers. Would you agree with that? 

13 MR. CONGER: Calls for spe.:ulation. You can 

14 answer f if you know. 

BY MS. UiNE: 10:19 

16 Q. If it helps, you can take a look at the fiDal 

17 full paxagraph. It says: "If you have been seeking a 

18 truly exceptional senior living experience, you ow~ it 

19 to yourself to find out more about this exclusive 

opportunity." 10:19 

21 A. I don't recall tllat it was only sent to people 

22 outside of -­ on their waiting llSt or something because 

23 it was also intended, I believe, for people who may be 

24 considering nloving to the tewer, the second tower wtlen 

it's bllilt. 10:19 
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1 Q. And when was the first time that you saw this 10:19 

2 document? 

3 .~ . I guess in Marcll of r03. 

4 Q. So did you see this document prior to the 

5 litigation being filed? 10:19 

6 Yes. 

7 Q. Oka:/. And did anything in this document lead 

8 you to believe that nurslng care would be provided 24 

9 hours a day or around the clec}:? 

10 MR. CONGER: If you recall. Calls for 10:20 

11 speculation. You can answer. 

12 THE WITNESS: I do not see those words in this 

13 document. 

14 BY MS. LANE: 

15· Q. lo.nd in the po:rti,:m that I s bracketed, again on 10: 20 

16 tIle first page, it states: "Perhaps most importantly of 

17 all, La Jolla Village Towers offers a vibrant active 

18 lifestyle with a peace of mind that comes from knowing 

19 your potential long-term care needs will be expertly met 

20 at our on-site center at virtually no extra cost." 1(\:20 

21 Yes, I see that. 

22 Q. And today lS long-term care being provided at 

the care center at no extra cost above and beyond your 

24 monthly fee? 

25 MR. CONGER: Calls for speculation from this 10:20 
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1 anxiety, ].085 of sleep, financial concerns, stress, Ilave 10:28 

2 they prevented you from undertaking any activities? 

3 Would you restate the question? 

4 Sure. Have any of those symptoms prevented you 

from doing anything you would normally do? 10,28 

6 No. 

7 Q. And have you sought any medical attention for 

8 the mental suffering? 

9 A. tJo. 

Q. Why not? 10:28 

11 A. I continued to believe that La Jolla Village 

12 TOIrJers was going to somehow or other stand up and 

13 fulfill all the promises that they made to us and that 

14 evelltually, eventually some of these things would 

decline, my symptoms. 10:29 

16 Q. And that's the reason tJlat you did net seek 

17 medical attention? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. And have you taken any medication for any of 

those symptoms? 10:29 

21 A. Yes. 

Q. 1'l'hat's that? 

~3 ~.. Aspirin, Ibuprofen. 

24 Q. On how many occaSlons have ::ioU taken aspirin 

and	 Ibuprofen -- 10:29 
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